

United States Attorneys Bulletin



*Published by Executive Office for United States Attorneys
Department of Justice, Washington, D.C.*

VOL. 19

FEBRUARY 5, 1971

NO. 3

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Page</u>
CIVIL DIVISION	
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT REQUIRED TO CONSIDER IMPACT OF PROPOSED HOUSING PROJECTS	<u>Maurice Shannon v. U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development</u> 59
LIMITATION OF ACTIONS	
Time Limit on Suit for Conver- sion of Lien Interest	<u>U. S. v. Southland Provision Co., et al</u> 60
CRIMINAL DIVISION	
NARCOTICS AND DANGEROUS DRUGS	
Admissions of Co-Defendants are Admissible as Against Each Other	<u>U. S. v. Williams</u> (C. A. 9) 62
FIREARMS	
Title II of Omnibus Crime Control Act of 1970 (P. L. 91-644)	63
LAND & NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION	
MINERAL LEASING ACT	
Public Lands; Mines and Minerals; Jurisdiction of the Secretary to Cancel Oil Shale Claims for Failure to do Assessment Work	<u>Hickel v. Oil Shale Corp., et al (S. Ct.)</u> 65
CONDEMNATION	
Enhancement of Remainder; General and Special Benefits; Review of Findings of Rule 71A(h) Commission; Remand Directing Entry of Judgment; Burden of Proof; Personal Value to Owner; View of the Property	<u>U. S. v. 901.89 Acres in Davidson and Rutherford Counties, Tenn.</u> (Davenport), (C. A. 6) 65

	<u>Page</u>
Relocation Payment for Moving Expenses Denied Where Applicant Failed to Submit Written Notice of Intent to Move and Three Cost Estimates	<u>Joseph E. Apolonio, et al v. D. C. Redevelopment Land Agency (D. D. C.)</u> 66
 ENVIRONMENT	
Representation of Interest by United States in Action to Prevent Formation of Drainage District	<u>J. Erwin Groover, et al v. A. B. E. Options, Inc., et al. (Monroe County Circuit Court, Fla.)</u> 67
 TAX DIVISION	
BANKRUPTCY	
Government's Right to Collect Post-Petition Interest	<u>Hugh H. Eby, Co. v. U. S.</u> 69
 LEVY	
Enforced Against Attorney-Trustee for Taxpayer's Property	<u>U. S. v. Callanan</u> 69
 SUMMONS	
Recent Developments in Enforcement of Special Agent Summonses	<u>U. S. v. Kelly</u> <u>U. S. v. Widelski</u> <u>U. S. v. National State Bank</u> <u>U. S. v. Hawkins</u> 70
 FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE	
RULE 7 (c): The Indictment and the Information	<u>U. S. v. Little (C. A. 3)</u> 73
RULE 32 (c): Sentence and Judgment; Presentence Investigation	<u>U. S. v. Warren (C. A. 5)</u> 75
RULE 33: New Trial	<u>U. S. v. Rao (C. A. 2)</u> 77
RULE 35: Correction or Reduction of Sentence	<u>Peterson v. U. S. (C. A. 8)</u> 79
RULE 41(d): Search and Seizure; Execution and Return with Inventory	<u>U. S. v. Harmon and Nelson (C. A. 6)</u> 81

RULE 41(e): Search and Seizure;
Motion for Return of Property
and to Suppress Evidence

U. S. v. Cobb, Sr.
(C. A. 4)

Page

83

LEGISLATIVE NOTES

NOTICE

At the end of this issue of the United States Attorneys' Bulletin, is a legislative analysis of Title IV - Organized Crime Control Act of 1970, P. L. 91-452, False Declarations. Attached to the analysis are two forms for use in preparing Grand Jury indictments charging violations of Title IV.

CIVIL DIVISION

Assistant Attorney General L. Patrick Gray, III

COURT OF APPEALS.HOUSING ACT

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT REQUIRED TO CONSIDER IMPACT OF PROPOSED HOUSING PROJECTS UPON RACIAL CONCENTRATION.

Maurice Shannon v. United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (C. A. 3, No. 18, 397; December 30, 1970; D. J. No. 130-62-2647)

Several Negro and white residents of, and organizations operating within, the East Poplar Urban Renewal area in Philadelphia brought this action seeking on a variety of grounds to enjoin federal financial assistance, consisting of mortgage insurance and rent supplement payments, to Fairmount Manor, a proposed low and moderate income garden apartment project in East Poplar. In approving the project, none of the federal officials involved had given consideration to the impact of the project upon the existing racial patterns in local housing.

After a full trial, the district court rejected all of the claims of invalidity in the federal approval of the project. On appeal, the plaintiffs abandoned all of their contentions except those based, in their words, on "civil rights issues." In that connection, they asserted that federal approval of the project without consideration of the racial makeup of the neighborhoods in which it and similar projects were located violated their rights under the Civil Rights Acts of 1964 and 1968, the Fifth and Thirteenth Amendments and the Civil Rights Act of 1866.

The court of appeals reversed. The court did not consider the plaintiffs' far-reaching constitutional assertions (e. g., that the Government is required to correct the effects of asserted past discriminatory administration of its housing programs) and did not base its decision directly on the Civil Rights Acts. Instead, it turned to the requirement of the Housing Act of 1949 that a locality seeking federal financial assistance have a plan "for effectively dealing with the problem of urban slums and blight." 42 U. S. C. 1451(c). The court discerned a congressional intent in the recent Civil Rights Act--which introduced racial factors into national housing policies by prohibiting discrimination under federal programs and directing HUD to administer its programs "in a manner

affirmatively to further " fair housing--to redefine "urban blight" in terms of racial factors. Then, stating that racial concentration has had a "very real effect * * * in the development of urban blight," the court held that HUD must take the effect of its programs upon racial concentration into account. The court recognized that racial factors were not alone controlling but indicated that proposals which have the disadvantage of perpetuating or maintaining racial concentration should not be approved unless the need for minority housing at the site in question clearly outweighs that disadvantage. Since HUD had not considered the racial factors in approving Fairmount Manor, the case was remanded to the agency for a determination of whether the project would advance or impede the community plan for eliminating "urban blight." The court gave HUD wide latitude to adopt an appropriate procedure for making that determination.

Staff: Alan S. Rosenthal and Michael C. Farrar
(Civil Division)

DISTRICT COURT

LIMITATION OF ACTIONS

TIME LIMIT ON SUIT FOR CONVERSION OF LIEN INTEREST.

United States v. Southland Provision Co., et al. (M. D. Fla., No. 69-627-Civ-J; decided December 15, 1970; D.J.No.136-17M-17)

The Farmers Home Administration made a loan to a man and his wife, secured by a lien on livestock they owned. Without FHA's permission the borrowers sold the livestock through three livestock commission markets. More than three years after the sale, the Government brought suit for conversion against the three commission markets. The commission markets moved for judgment on the pleadings, invoking 24 U. S. C. 2415(b), which imposes a three-year limit on suits by the United States founded upon a tort. The Government in turn invoked the proviso in that statute allowing six years for an action for conversion of Government property, and the crucial question was whether a mere security lien was "property" within the meaning of the statute. Denying defendants' motion, the court sustained the Government's position primarily on the ground that the legislative history of the statute showed a congressional intent to allow six years for actions "of a type which might not be immediately brought to the attention of the Government." Such circumstances exist where the property in question remains in the physical possession of the borrower.

Since many suits of this type are brought, this decision provides a useful precedent for an issue that is likely to recur.

Staff: United States Attorney John L. Briggs;
Assistant United States Attorney Joseph W.
Hatchett (M. D. Fla.), and Robert Mandel
(Civil Division).

*

*

*

CRIMINAL DIVISION
Assistant Attorney General Will Wilson

COURT OF APPEALS

NARCOTICS AND DANGEROUS DRUGS

ADMISSIONS OF CO-DEFENDANTS ARE ADMISSIBLE AS AGAINST EACH OTHER.

United States v. Morris Garfield Williams, Jr. (C. A. 9, November 23, 1970; No. 24,923; D.J. 12-12c-101)

On February 19, 1968, an undercover agent from BNDD was introduced to appellant by a Wallace Wong. At this time, Wong stated that he had five ounces of cocaine that belonged to Williams. Wong further stated that Williams wanted to sell it. The agent then asked where it came from and Wong replied "from Mexico." Arrangements were then made for a purchase to take place the following day.

Appellant was subsequently arrested and convicted on two counts of violating 26 U.S.C. §174 and one count of violating 26 U.S.C. §4705(a).

Appellant argues that proof of illegal importation and knowledge of illegal importation was inadequate because it was based upon a statement of Wong that the cocaine came from Mexico, and not an admission of appellant. The Court properly held that admissions and statements of co-defendants are admissible as against the other even in the absence of a conspiracy charge where there is independent evidence of a concert of action. In this case, the evidence of concerted action between Wong and Williams was clearly demonstrated. It was established by the testimony of three agents. That being so, the statement of Wong that the cocaine being sold came from Mexico was clearly admissible against all of the participants.

Since the importation of any cocaine is unlawful under 21 U.S.C. §173, the uncontradicted statement of Wong concerning the Mexican origin of the cocaine was sufficient to prove the fact of Wong's knowledge of the illegal importation.

Staff: United States Attorney Robert L. Meyer;
Assistant United States Attorney David P. Curnow
(C. D. Calif.)

FIREARMS: Title II of Omnibus Crime Control Act
of 1970 (P. L. 91-644)

Section 924(c) of Title 18, as originally enacted December 16, 1968, imposed additional sanctions under subsection (1) on persons who used a firearm to commit a Federal felony, and under subsection (2) on persons who carried a firearm in violation of state, local, or Federal law during the commission of a Federal felony. Title II of the Omnibus Crime Control Act of 1970, which became effective on January 2, 1971, amends Section 924(c) by:

(1) requiring sentences for its violation to be consecutive to sentences for underlying felonies; and,

(2) lowering the minimum mandatory sentence for second and subsequent offenders from five years to two years.

Since Section 924(c) as originally enacted was effective until January 2, 1971, it is still applicable to all violations committed before that date. Section 924(c) as amended will be applicable to all violations committed after that date. Consequently, all indictments for violation of this section should be drafted accordingly.

A number of Federal statutes already include special provisions providing for increased penalties where a firearm is used in the commission of the offense. E. g. 18 U.S.C. 111, 112 and 2113, and 49 U.S.C. 1472. Since the specific provisions of these statutes may take precedence over the general provisions of Section 924(c)(1), the specific provisions should be used where applicable. Many other Federal felonies involving the use of a firearm in their commission already carry heavy penalties. It is doubtful that the use of Section 924(c)(1) for violation of these statutes will result in increased total sentences. Thus, the use of subsection (1) would appear warranted only when it is anticipated that the court will impose a greater total sentence because of its use or when the defendant has demonstrated recidivist tendencies which suggest a future utilization of Section 924(c)'s second and subsequent offender provision.

However, in instances where a defendant unlawfully carried a firearm during the commission of a Federal felony, the significantly increased penalties possible under subsection (2) often may make its use a valuable adjunct to the basic felony charge from the standpoint of both deterring the carrying of firearms by such persons, and of obtaining pleas to the underlying offense. As a practical matter, however, it would seem more appropriate to use this subsection only in cases where the

carrying of the firearm in some way furthered the defendant's commission of the underlying felony or posed some special danger to law enforcement officers. Thus, for example, while it would be desirable to use subsection (2) in many narcotics and gambling cases, its use would not seem appropriate in forgery or false statement cases.

*

*

*

LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION
Assistant Attorney General Shiro Kashiwa

SUPREME COURT

MINERAL LEASING ACT

PUBLIC LANDS; MINES AND MINERALS; JURISDICTION OF THE
SECRETARY TO CANCEL OIL SHALE CLAIMS FOR FAILURE TO DO
ASSESSMENT WORK.

Hickel v. Oil Shale Corp., et al. (S. Ct. No. 25, Oct. Term, 1970,
decided Dec. 5, 1970; D. J. 90-1-18-668)

The Supreme Court reversed the Tenth Circuit and severely limited two prior Supreme Court decisions (Wilbur v. Krushnic, 280, U. S. 306, and Ickes v. Virginia-Colorado Development Corp., 295 U. S. 639) with respect to the rights of the United States, where mining claimants had failed to do assessment work on oil shale claims. The Court now holds that the savings clause of the Mineral Leasing Act of 1920, protecting claims which are "maintained," makes the United States the beneficiary of claims which are invalid for failure to do assessment work and that the Secretary of the Interior has subject matter jurisdiction to determine whether the ancient claims here involved are invalid as not having been "maintained," taking into account the lack of adequate assessment work over the past 30 years. The Court is not specific as to the effect of the unappealed cancellations in the late 1920's and early 1930's for failure to do assessment work.

Staff: Peter L. Strauss (Assistant to the Solicitor
General); Thos. L. McKevitt and Edmund B.
Clark (Land and Natural Resources Division)

COURT OF APPEALS

CONDEMNATION

ENHANCEMENT OF REMAINDER; GENERAL AND SPECIAL
BENEFITS; REVIEW OF FINDINGS OF RULE 71A (h) COMMISSION;
REMAND DIRECTING ENTRY OF JUDGMENT; BURDEN OF PROOF;
PERSONAL VALUE TO OWNER; VIEW OF THE PROPERTY.

United States v. 901.89 Acres in Davidson and Rutherford Counties, Tenn. (Davenport), (C.A. 6, No. 20169, Dec. 22, 1970; D.J.33-44-277-723)

In taking of 144.80 from a 218.80-acre tract for a dam and reservoir project where the landowner's remainder would have an unobstructed view of the lake, the landowner's valuation was \$155,000, and his experts' figure was \$108,000. The Government's appraiser, offsetting enhancement to the 74-acre remainder, was \$50,000. The Rule 71A(h) commission, without explaining, made an award of \$97,000, which the district court confirmed. The Government appealed.

The court of appeals found that as the commission's report failed to reveal the basis of its valuation of the entire tract before the taking, the court was left without any means of testing the validity of the commission's conclusion under United States v. Merz, 376 U.S. 192, 198 (1964). The court noted that the landowner has the burden of proving the market value of his property; that personal value to the owner is not market value; and that the commission's view of the property could not be contrary to probative evidence.

The court ruled that the Government's appraiser properly considered, and the commission erroneously rejected, enhancement to the remainder, even though the project had caused some increase in values in the entire area.

Finally, instead of ordering a new trial, the court exercised its discretion under 28 U.S.C. sec. 2106 and remanded for entry of judgment at \$50,000, the amount testified to by the Government's appraiser, whose valuations alone were legally sustainable.

Staff: Charles N. Woodruff (formerly of the Land and Natural Resources Division) and Jacques B. Gelin.

DISTRICT COURT

CONDEMNATION

RELOCATION PAYMENT FOR MOVING EXPENSES DENIED WHERE APPLICANT FAILED TO SUBMIT WRITTEN NOTICE OF INTENT TO MOVE AND THREE COST ESTIMATES.

Joseph E. Apolonio, et al. v. D. C. Redevelopment Land Agency
(D. D. C., Oct. 26, 1970; D. J. 90-1-23-1492)

This was an action against the D. C. Redevelopment Land Agency for a relocation payment pursuant to D. C. Code sec. 5-729. Plaintiff's property was acquired in condemnation proceedings by the D. C. Government. Plaintiff failed to serve timely notice of his intent to move and three estimates of the cost of moving his personal property, as required under the regulations issued by the Board of Commissioners of the District of Columbia pursuant to D. C. Code Sec. 5-729.

The court held that plaintiff's failure to comply with applicable regulations rendered him ineligible for a relocation payment. The court also ruled that it lacked jurisdiction over the subject matter of his claim, citing Fountain v. U. S. and Redevelopment Land Agency, 427 F.2d 759 (C. Cls. 1970).

Staff: Assistant United States Attorney Ellen Lee
Park (D. D. C.); Jonathan U. Burdick (Land
and Natural Resources Division)

STATE COURT

ENVIRONMENT

REPRESENTATION OF INTEREST BY UNITED STATES IN ACTION TO PREVENT FORMATION OF DRAINAGE DISTRICT.

J. Erwin Groover, et al. v. A. B. E. Options, Inc., et al.
(Case No. 2-350, Monroe County Circuit Court, Fla., Dec. 10, 1970;
D. J. 90-1-2-859)

This was an action filed in June 1970 to establish the Gum Slough Drainage District under the Florida General Drainage Act of 1913, Florida Statute Chapter 298 (1967). According to the allegations of the petition, the proposed drainage district would comprise approximately 33,000 acres of land, of which approximately 1,920 acres would be within the authorized boundaries of the Everglades National Park.

The United States moved for leave to file a representation of interest to present evidence, file briefs and to take part in all further proceedings. The federal interest was protection of the Everglades National Park. After the case was commenced, the United States purchased a tract of land within the proposed district.

The court held that the property ownership of the United States was sufficient to allow it to become a party. However, since the bar of sovereign immunity could not be waived, the United States was allowed to proceed by representation of interest.

Following the hearing, the court dismissed the petition for establishment of the drainage district. Testimony at the hearing revealed the damage which the proposed drainage district would inflict upon the Everglades National Park due to inevitable alteration of water quality and quantity. The Florida statute (298.03) required that drainage districts be in the interest of the public health, convenience or welfare. Among other findings in the court's order dismissing the petition to establish the drainage district was the finding that formation of the district would be detrimental to the Everglades National Park, and therefore not in the best interests of either the citizens of Florida in particular or of the citizens of the United States in general.

A petition for rehearing or amendment of order was denied by the court on January 4, 1971.

Staff: Kenneth F. Hoffman (Land and Natural Resources
Division)

*

*

*

TAX DIVISION

Assistant Attorney General Johnnie M. Walters

DISTRICT COURT

REFUND TAX SUIT

GOVERNMENT'S RIGHT TO COLLECT POST-PETITION INTEREST
ON A TAX CLAIM IN A BANKRUPTCY PROCEEDING.

Hugh H. Eby, Co. v. United States, Civil Action No. 43491 (E. D. Pa.) D. J. No. 5-62-3088

The present case raised the question of whether the United States has the right to collect post-petition interest on a tax claim following a debtor's discharge in bankruptcy. The tax interest at issue in this case accrued between the date when the taxpayer filed a petition in bankruptcy and the time when the Bankruptcy Court entered an order confirming the debtor's plan of arrangement.

The case was submitted on stipulations of fact and cross motions for summary judgment. The Court ruled in favor of the Government's right to collect such interest basing its decision upon Bruning v. United States, 376 U. S. 358 (1964). Specifically the Court held that a bankrupt whose tax indebtedness is not discharged under the provisions of Section 17 of the Bankruptcy Act is also responsible for post-petition interest which accrues on the Government's tax claim citing In Re Oxford Investment Company, 246 F. Supp. 651 (S. D. Cal., 1965).

The real significance of the case is the fact that the decision is directly opposite the holdings of In Re Vaughn, 292 F. Supp. 731 (E. D. Ken., 1968) and In Re Johnson Electrical Corp., 312 F. Supp. 841 (S. D. N. Y., 1969) now on appeal to the Second Circuit.

Staff: Theodore B. Stolman (Tax Division)

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS IN THE ENFORCEMENT OF
INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE LEVIESLEVY ENFORCED AGAINST ATTORNEY WHO WAS TRUSTEE FOR
TAXPAYER'S PROPERTY IN A SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSOCIATION.

United States v. Callanan (DC Md., No. 21293, January 15, 1971; D. J. File 5-35-1461).

The defendant (an attorney recently convicted of tax evasion) was a trustee for the benefit of a delinquent taxpayer of an account in a savings and loan association. Defendant refused to honor a revenue officer's levy

on the account. When suit was brought, the refusal to honor the levy was sought to be justified on the ground that defendant had an attorney's lien on the account balance which was senior to the lien of the United States.

The Court granted a motion for summary judgment in favor of the United States, noting that Maryland law does not recognize the attorney's charging lien except in cases involving the hospital lien and workman's compensation award. St. Joseph Hospital v. Quinn, 241 Md. 371, 216 A. 2d 732 (1966); Hoffman v. Liberty Mutual Insurance Company, 232 Md. 51, 191 A. 2d 575 (1963). While Maryland does recognize the attorney's retaining lien, this lien depends upon possession in the hands of the attorney. Ashman v. Schechter, 196 Md. 168, 76 A. 2d 139 (1950); United States v. 72.71 Acres of Land, Etc., 167 F. Supp. 512 (Md., 1958). The Court observed that, while the primary thrust of Title 26, United States Code, Section 6332, is to obligate those in possession of a taxpayer's property to honor a levy, the section also applies to "any person . . . (obligated with respect to) . . . property subject to levy . . ." (26 U.S.C. §6332(a)). The Court found this language applicable in the situation before it in which the money was in the possession of the savings and loan association, but the trustee possessed the power to withdraw it. The trustee, then, was obligated with respect to the property, but did not have possession, thus preventing invocation of an attorney's retaining lien.

Staff: Douglas E. McKinley (Tax Division)

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS IN THE ENFORCEMENT OF SPECIAL AGENT INTERNAL REVENUE SUMMONSES

SUMMONSES FOR PRODUCTION OF ACCOUNTANTS' WORK PAPERS HAVE BEEN ENFORCED WHERE ACCOUNTANTS HAVE TRANSFERRED THEM TO THE TAXPAYERS BEING INVESTIGATED PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF THE SUMMONSES; INTERVENING TAXPAYERS HAVE BEEN BARRED FROM INITIATING DISCOVERY OF IRS AGENTS AND RECORDS CONCERNING THEM.

United States v. Kelly, 311 F. 2d 1216 (E. D. Pa., No. 69-462, April 9, 1970; D.J. File 5-62-32-43).

United States v. Widelski, 26 A. F. T. R. 2d 70-5201 (E. D. Mich., No. 34718, October 22, 1970; D.J. File 5-37-2553).

United States v. National State Bank (E. D. Ill., No. 70-64, December 19, 1970; D.J. File 5-24-624).

United States v. Hawkins, 25 A. F. T. R. 2d 70-1052 (E. D. Ill., No. 69-214-D, April 8, 1970; D.J. File 5-24-618).

Where an accountant, having knowledge of an Internal Revenue Service investigation pertaining to a taxpayer-client, transfers his work papers to that taxpayer-client prior to the issuance of a summons to either the client or to the accountant, the client will not be allowed to raise the personal privilege against self-incrimination.

In the Kelly case, the accountant admitted ownership of his work papers but pleaded that he gave up ownership at the time of the transfer to the taxpayer-client. The Court stated that if the taxpayer had "received the work papers in a purely personal capacity no privilege would exist. To hold that the mere transfer of documents, not subject to a privilege [i. e., there is no accountant-client privilege], creates a privilege in the holder is an absurdity. The logical extension of such a rule would result in a total strangulation of the investigatory process." Concluding, the Court noted that "the transfer of the documents was a sham transaction designed to create a privilege which did not otherwise exist.

In the Widelski case, the accountant, unlike the accountant in Kelly, stated that he never had considered himself as the owner of his work papers, which he transferred to the taxpayers 18 months before the summons was issued. The Court, despite the assertions of the accountant at the hearing (i. e., the Government called the accountant as an adverse witness), concluded that the work papers were his property at the time of the transfer and that, consequently, the transfer did not create "legitimate" possession in the taxpayer-transferees. The Court noted that its order compelling production did "not transgress the taxpayers' Fifth Amendment rights since the frantic last minute efforts on their part to put the requested returns beyond the reach of the Government did not have the effect of transferring rightful possession of them."

Where taxpayers being investigated intervene in summons enforcement actions against third parties and allege that the Internal Revenue Service is only seeking to obtain "criminal" evidence, those taxpayers will not be permitted to dispose Internal Revenue Service agents or to examine their files.

In the National State Bank case, a summons was served by a special agent directing a bank to produce its records pertaining to a taxpayer under investigation. The taxpayer intervened in accordance with United States v. Benford, 406 F. 2d 1192 (C. A. 7, 1969) and filed a notice to take the depositions of two special agents who had participated in the investigation. Additionally, the taxpayer caused a subpoena duces tecum to be issued requiring the production of certain Internal Revenue Service records. The Government then moved, under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 81(a)(3), to quash the subpoenas duces tecum and the notices to take depositions.

A hearing on the merits of the enforcement action was held and the Government's motion was then taken under consideration by the Court. Thereafter, without further hearings, the Court granted the Government's motion in its entirety and ordered the summons enforced, noting that the Government had already established that "at least one of the purposes of the subpoena is the determination of civil tax liability of the taxpayer", and that "the summons is valid on that ground alone."

The facts in the Hawkins case were nearly identical to those in National State Bank. The Court, in denying the taxpayer-intervenor's request for discovery, stated that it was "authorized under Rule 81(a)(3) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure to modify or limit the rules of discovery in proceedings to enforce an Internal Revenue summons. If a taxpayer is afforded a full adversary hearing on possible challenges to enforcement of the summons, it is not an abuse of discretion to bar discovery." The Court noted that "the fact that an investigation to determine the intervenors' tax liability may produce evidence of criminal violations is not sufficient in and of itself to justify further delay in the enforcement of the summons." It concluded by noting that "to permit extensive pre-trial discovery in proceedings of this type will not only result in interminable and unjustifiable delays, which will nullify the clear purpose of 26 U.S.C. § 7602.

Staff: Jeffrey D. Snow (Tax Division)

* * *